
 

 

SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 

A G E N D A 

JULY 28, 2020 

10:00 A.M. 

 
PLEASE REVIEW MEETING INSTRUCTIONS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE AGENDA 

 

Call to Order 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes – July 14, 2020 

Reading of Correspondence 

Public Comments 

Consent Agenda 

 1. Use of Existing Wastewater Infrastructure Agreement, IUA974-1 
  H&D Townhouses – H&D Subdivision, LLC 
 
 2. Use of Existing Wastewater Infrastructure Agreement 
  Hyatt Hotel – Lewes Hotel LLC (revised) 

Todd Lawson, County Administrator 
 
 1. Recognition of Retiring EMS Director Robert A. Stuart 
  
 2. Introduction of New Airport Manager 
 
 3. Appointment - Building Code Appeal Board 
  (Board of Adjustments & Appeals) 
 
 4. Administrator’s Report 
 
 



 

County Council Agenda – Page 2 of 5 
 

10:15 a.m.  Public Hearing 
 

“AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF UP TO $5,744,784 OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF SUSSEX COUNTY IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE LAND CONSERVATION/WATER QUALITY PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZING ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH” 

 
10:30 a.m. Public Hearing 

 1. Herola Expansion of the West Rehoboth Area 

 2. Ocean Park Expansion of the West Rehoboth Area 

Gina Jennings, Finance Director 

 1. Discussion and Possible Introduction of a Proposed Ordinance entitled “AN 
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF UP TO $100,000,000 OF 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF SUSSEX COUNTY IN 
CONNECTION WITH (A) THE REFUNDING OF PRIOR DEBT OF THE 
COUNTY WHICH WILL RESULT IN DEBT SERVICE SAVINGS AND (B) 
THE FINANCING OF SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS; 
AND AUTHORIZING ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH” 

 
Vince Robertson, Assistant County Attorney 
 
 1. Discussion related to the July Revision of the DelDOT Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) 
 
 2. Public comment related to the DelDOT MOU 
 
Dwayne Kilgo, Director of Information Technology 

 1. Nuvision Agreement 

William Pfaff, Director of Economic Development 

 1. Delaware Coastal Business Park Lease – Eastern Shore Natural Gas  

Robbie Murray, Deputy Director of EMS Administration 

 1. Mobile Integrated Healthcare Pilot Program 

  A. Extension of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Beebe  
   Healthcare and State of Delaware 

Jamie Whitehouse, Director of Planning and Zoning 

 1. Request for re-hearing – Conditional Use No. 2223 filed on behalf of A&W 
  Burbage, LLC 



 

County Council Agenda – Page 3 of 5 
 

Hans Medlarz, County Engineer 

 1. South Coastal Regional Wastewater Facility Treatment Process Upgrade No. 
  3 and Rehoboth Beach Wastewater Treatment Plant Capital Improvement 
  Program, Phase 2 

  A. General Construction, Project C19-11, Change Order No. 3 

  B. General Construction, Project C19-11, Change Order No. 4 

  C. Electrical Construction, Project C19-17, Change Order No. 5 

  D. City of Rehoboth 2nd Supplemental Financing Agreement Approval 

 2. Western Sussex Transmission Facilities Contract 4:  Pumping Stations,  
  Project S19-28 

  A. Change Order No. 2 

 3. Inland Bays Regional Wastewater Facility – Biosolids & Septage Facilities, 
Project 18-19 

  A. Change Order No. 6 

Grant Request 

 1. AIDS Delaware, Inc. and Delaware HIV Consortium for AIDS Walk Delaware 
  fundraiser and awareness event 

Introduction of Proposed Zoning Ordinances 

Council Members’ Comments 

Executive Session – Pending Litigation pursuant to 29 Del.C.§10004(b) 

Possible Action on Executive Session Items 

1:30 p.m. Public Hearings 
 
PLEASE REVIEW MEETING INSTRUCTIONS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE AGENDA. 

 Change of Zone No. 1916 filed on behalf of Alice P. Robinson, Trustee 
“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP OF 
SUSSEX COUNTY FROM AN AR-1 AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO A C-2 MEDIUM COMMERCIAL DISTRICT FOR A CERTAIN 
PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN BROADKILL HUNDRED, SUSSEX 
COUNTY, CONTAINING 3.03 ACRES, MORE OR LESS” (land lying on the 
southwest side of Coastal Highway (Route 1), approximately 458 feet south of Cave 
Neck Road) (Tax I.D. No. 235-23.00-54.01, 54.02, and 54.05) (911 Address:  None 
Available)  

 
 
 



 

County Council Agenda – Page 4 of 5 
 

 Change of Zone No. 1907 filed on behalf of Matthew Hete 
“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP OF 
SUSSEX COUNTY FROM AN AR-1 AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO A MR MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR A 
CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN LEWES AND 
REHOBOTH HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, CONTAINING 1.25 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS” (land lying on the southeast side of Postal Lane, approximately 
0.22 mile northeast of Plantation Road) (Tax I.D. No. 334-6.00-686.00) (911 Address:  
34360 Postal Lane, Lewes) 

 
Conditional Use No. 2209 filed on behalf of Matthew Hete 
“AN ORDINANCE TO GRANT A CONDITIONAL USE OF LAND IN A 
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR MULTI-FAMILY (14 
UNITS) TO BE LOCATED ON A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND 
BEING IN LEWES AND REHOBOTH HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, 
CONTAINING 1.25 ACRES, MORE OR LESS” (land lying on the southeast side of 
Postal Lane, approximately 0.22 mile northeast of Plantation Road) (Tax I.D. No. 
334-6.00-686.00) (911 Address:  34360 Postal Lane, Lewes) 

 
Adjourn 

 

 

In accordance with 29 Del.C. §10004(e)(2), this Agenda was posted on July 21, 2020 at 4:20 p.m., and at least 
seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. 

This Agenda was prepared by the County Administrator and is subject to change to include the addition or 
deletion of items, including Executive Sessions, which arise at the time of the meeting. 

Agenda items may be considered out of sequence. 

Further meeting access instructions are listed below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

County Council Agenda – Page 5 of 5 
 

 
-MEETING INSTRUCTIONS- 

 
The Sussex County Council is holding this meeting under the authority issued by Governor 
John C. Carney through Proclamation No. 17-3292.   
 
The public is encouraged to view the meeting on-line.  Any person attending in-person will 
be required to go through a wellness and security screening, including a no-touch 
temperature check.  The public will be required to wear a facial mask. 
 
Chambers seating capacity is limited and seating assignments will be enforced. 
 
The meeting will streamed live at https://sussexcountyde.gov/council-chamber-
broadcast. 
 
The County is required to provide a dial-in number for the public to comment during the 
appropriate time of the meeting.  Note, the on-line stream experiences a 30-second delay. 
Any person who dials in should listen to the teleconference audio to avoid the on-line stream 
delay. 
 
To join the meeting via telephone, please dial:  
 

Conference Number: 1-302-394-5036 
Conference Code: 570176 

 
Members of the public joining the meeting on the telephone will be provided an opportunity 
to make comments under the Public Comment section of the meeting and during the 
respective Public Hearing. 
 
The Council meeting materials, including the “packet”, are electronically accessible on the 
County’s website at: https://sussexcountyde.gov/agendas-minutes/county-council. 
 
If any member of the public would like to submit comments electronically, please feel free 
to send them to rgriffith@sussexcountyde.gov.  All comments shall be submitted by 4:30 
P.M. on Monday, July 27, 2020. 
 

 

#  #  #  # 

https://sussexcountyde.gov/council-chamber-broadcast
https://sussexcountyde.gov/council-chamber-broadcast
https://sussexcountyde.gov/agendas-minutes/county-council
mailto:rgriffith@sussexcountyde.gov


 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION                                                              Sussex County 
      ROBERT C. WHEATLEY, CHAIRMAN  DELAWARE 
 KIM HOEY STEVENSON, VICE-CHAIRMAN                                                                               sussexcountyde.gov  

         R. KELLER HOPKINS  302-855-7878 T 
         J. BRUCE MEARS                                                                                                               302-854-5079 F 
         HOLLY J. WINGATE                              JAMIE WHITEHOUSE, AICP, MRTPI 
                                                                                                      
 

 

 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING AND COUNTY COUNCIL INFORMATION SHEET 
Planning Commission Public Hearing Date June 25,2020. 

 
Application: (CZ 1916) Alice P. Robinson, Trustee 
 
Applicant:  Alice P. Robinson, Trustee 
   35791 Tarpon Drive 
   Lewes, DE 19958 
    
Owner:  Alice P. Robinson, Trustee 
   35791 Tarpon Drive 
   Lewes, DE 19958 
    
Site Location:  Located on the south side of Coastal Highway (Route 1), approximately 

910 feet east of Cave Neck Road (S.C.R. 88). 
 
Current Zoning: Agricultural Residential (AR-1) 
 
Proposed Zoning:  Medium Commercial District (C-2) 
  
Comprehensive Land   
Use Plan Reference:   Coastal Area  
 
Councilmatic 
District:  Mr. Burton 
 
School District: Cape Henlopen School District 
 
Fire District:  Lewes Fire Company 
 
Sewer:   Sussex County 
 
Water:    Private 
 
Site Area:   3.03 acres +/- 
 
Tax Map ID.:   235-23.00-54.01, 54.02, and 54.05 
 



CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Street Map



Sussex County

polygonLayer
Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Tax Parcels
Streets

May 19, 2020
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.075 km

1:4,514

 
 

35791 TARPON DR
526

LEWES
DE
LANDS OF R G HOUSTON

 
 
LOT 20 RT 1

235-23.00-54.01
Owner Name

Mailing Address
Book

City
State
Description

Land Code
Description 3
Description 2

PIN:
ROBINSON ALICE P
TRUSTEE



CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Aerial Map



                                   
    
               
                    
      

 
 COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 
 2 THE CIRCLE I PO BOX 417 
 GEORGETOWN, DELAWARE 

JAMIE WHITEHOUSE, AICP, MRTPI 
 DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & ZONING 

(302) 855-7878 T 
(302) 854-5079 F 

jamie.whitehouse@sussexcountyde.gov 

Sussex County 

DELAWARE 
sussexcountyde.gov 

Memorandum  
To: Sussex County Planning Commission Members  
From: Nick Torrance, Planner I  
CC: Vince Robertson, Assistant County Attorney and Applicant  
Date: June 16, 2020 
RE: Staff Analysis for CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee 
  
This memo is to provide background and analysis for the Planning Commission to consider as part 
of application CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee to be reviewed during the June 25, 2020 Planning 
& Zoning Commission Meeting. This analysis should be included in the record of this application and 
is subject to comments and information that may be presented during the public hearing.  
 
The request is for a Change of Zone for parcels  235-23.00-54.01, 54.02, and 54.05 to allow for a 
change from AR-1 (Agricultural Residential District) to C-2 (Medium Commercial Zoning District) 
to be located on the south side of Coastal Highway (Route 1), approximately 910 feet east of Cave 
Neck Road (S.C.R. 88). The total size of the parcels to be rezoned is 3.03 ac. +/-.  
 
The 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan Update (Comprehensive Plan) provides a framework 
of how land is to be developed. As part of the Comprehensive Plan a Future Land Use Map is included 
to help determine how land should be zoned to ensure responsible development. The Future Land 
Use map indicates that the application property has the land use designation of “Coastal Area.” 
 
The adjoining parcels to the west, south and east are all designated on the Future Land Use Map as 
“Coastal Area” as well.  The parcels on the north side of Coastal Highway (Route 1) is designated 
“Low Density”. “Coastal Areas” are areas that can accommodate development provided special 
environmental concerns are addressed. The “Coastal Area” also supports a range of housing types 
including single-family homes, townhomes, and multi-family units. Retail and office uses are 
appropriate but larger shopping centers and office parks should be confined to selected locations with 
access along arterial roads. Mixed-use development should also be allowed. 
 
Table 4.5-2 within the Comprehensive Plan states that, within the “Coastal Area” future land use 
classification, C-2 (Medium Commercial Zoning District) may be appropriate.   
 
The property is currently zoned AR-1 (Agricultural Residential District). The adjoining parcel to the 
west is zoned B-1 (Neighborhood Business).  To the south, the adjoining parcels are zoned MR 
(Medium-Density Residential District).  To the east, along Coastal Highway, there are commercially 
zoned properties within the C-1 (General Commercial) district.  
 
Since 2011, there have been no Change of Zone applications within the vicinity of the application site. 
 
Based on the analysis of the land use, surrounding zoning and uses, the propose Change of Zone from 
AR-1 (Agricultural Residential District) to C-2 (Medium Commercial District) subject to 



 

considerations of scale and impact, this could be considered as being consistent with the land use, area 
zoning and surrounding uses.   

 

















 
18072 Davidson Drive 

Milton, DE 19968 
T: 302-684-8030 
F: 302-684-8054 

 
www.pennoni.com 

 

ALICE P ROBINSON, TRUSTEE 
CASE NO. CZ1916  

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FROM AR-1 TO C-2 (Medium Commercial) 

 

OWNER:  
 
Alice Robinson, Trustee 
35791 Tarpon Drive 
Lewes, DE 19958   
 
DEVELOPER: 
 
Alice Robinson, Trustee 
35791 Tarpon Drive 
Lewes, DE 19958   
 
 
PLANNER/ENGINEER/SURVEYOR: 
 
PENNONI 
18072 DAVIDSON DRIVE 
MILTON, DE 19968 
MARK H. DAVIDSON, PRINCIPAL LAND PLANNER 
ALAN DECKTOR, PE., ENV SP 
JOHN W. HAUPT, PLS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL: 
 
PENNONI & ACCENT ENVIRONMENTAL 
WILLIAM J. GANGLOFF, PhD. PROFESSIONAL SOIL 
SCIENTIST 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 
 

 
TAB 1  APPLICATION 
 

a. APPLICATION 
b. BOUNDARY SURVEY 
c. LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
d. SERVICE LEVEL RESPONSE LETTER 

 
TAB 2  EXHIBITS 
 

a. COMMERCIAL CONCEPT 
b. COMP PLAN CRITERIA 
c. COMP PLAN – FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
d. DELDOT OVERPASS ALTERNATIVES 3 

 
TAB 3  MAPS/PLANS 
 

a. 2019 AERIAL, 2017, 2012, 2007, 2002, 
1997, 1992, 1968, 1961, 1954, 1937 
AND 1926 ORTHO – 2015 STATE 
SRATEGIES, COUNTY ZONING, 2015 
LAND USE, NRCS SOILS, STATE 
WETLANDS, FEMA FLOODPLAIN, 
GROUNDWATER RECHARGE, USGS 
TOPOGRAPHIC AND AREA COMMERCIAL 
USES MAP 

TAB 4  FINDINGS 

a. FINDINGS OF FACT 



Mark H. Davidson / Vice President 
Principal Land Planner/Office Director 

2019 Davidson | 1 of 1 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY  
Mark H. Davidson serves as Vice President of Pennoni and Office Director for our Southern 
Delaware, Milton Office. Mark also serves as the Principal Land Planner for Pennoni. He has 
over 35-years of past experience in Surveying, Engineering, Consulting, Construction and 
Land Planning. For 12-years he owned a professional engineering, surveying, land planning, 
environmental and consulting firm that provided professional consulting and design in land 
planning for residential, industrial, institutional, municipal and commercial applications to 
a wide range of clients in Delaware and Maryland. Mr. Davidson’s project experience 
includes land development planning, surveying, engineering, environmental design and 
permitting; construction and project consulting, management and inspection; water 
resource consulting, management and inspection and municipal consulting, planning and 
inspection for residential, industrial, institutional, municipal and commercial applications.  

Mark is a past director of the Delaware Onsite Wastewater Recycling Association as well as 
a member of the American Planning Association, American Institute of Certified Planners 
and has served in the past as a committee member of Delaware Low Impact Development 
Roundtable Committee, Delaware Pollution Control Strategy Committee, Delaware 
Sediment & Stormwater Regulatory Advisory Committee, and the Delaware Technical & 
Community College A/E Curriculum Committee. He was also nominated for the Brandywine 
Chapter Association of Fundraising Professionals Philanthropy Award and has won the BNI 
Notable Networker Award.  

Along with all the experience and education stated and with many years of combined 
experience in Surveying, Engineering, Consulting and Land Planning, he has been 
responsible for providing consulting, layout and design in surveying, engineering and land 
planning for residential, industrial, institutional, municipal and commercial applications to 
a wide range of clients in Delaware, Maryland, Virginia and West Virginia.   He has project 
managed, studied, planned, surveyed, designed and engineered sustainable, master-
planned communities, commercial and urban redevelopment projects, and the public 
infrastructure that supports them. 

Mark has provided nationwide land planning consulting services to a variety of clientele to 
help coordinate project startups as well as final construction consulting services when it 
came to commercial, residential, industrial, municipal, educational and community land 
planning. Provided additional consulting in civil/site engineering, stormwater management, 
erosion and sediment control, wastewater collection and disposal, transportation, and 
environmental. Market areas practiced; Delaware, Maryland, West Virginia, Virginia, North 
Carolina, South Carolina, North Dakota, Puerto Rico, Canada and Panama. 

Additional Project experience includes cutting edge design and technology as well as value 
engineering to help clients through the ever-changing market including but not limited to 
solar voltaic and wind generation projects. 

He is currently appointed by the Secretary of DNREC to serve 3-years on the On Site Septic 
Advisory Board for the State of Delaware. 

 

EDUCATION 
University of Delaware; Civil Engineering, 
(1986-1990) 

Land Surveying, Delaware Technical & 
Community College (1984-1986) and 
Wastewater Microbiology Diploma 
(1997) 

Land Planning, Institute for Public 
Administration (2006) 

CERTIFICATIONS 
DNREC Class A Percolation Tester & Class 
B Septic Designer, (DE #2418)  

Sediment & Stormwater Management, 
Responsible Personnel, DE (#8760) and 
MD (#4914) 

DNREC Certified Construction Reviewer: 
DE (#1270) 

Delaware Notary  

TRAININGS  
Hydrology, Delaware TR-20 (1993) 

Reducing Flood Hazard in Coastal 
Development (1996) 

Law for Managers/Supervisors (1999) 

State and Federal Laws (2000) 

Advanced Real Estate Law in Delaware 
(2002) 

Land Conservation and Historic 
Preservation (2003) 

Land Surveying Business Diploma (1998) 

Project Manager Training I, Pennoni 
(2015) 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 
National Onsite Wastewater Recycling 
Association 

Delaware Onsite Wastewater Recycling 
Association  

American Planning Association 

American Institute of Certified Planners 

HONORS/AWARDS 
Association of Professionals 
Philanthropy, Brandywine Chapter 
Fundraising Nominee (2014) 

Notable Networker Award, BNI (2013) 



File #: ___________ 

Planning & Zoning Commission Application 
Sussex County, Delaware 

Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department 
2 The Circle (P.O. Box 417) Georgetown, DE 19947 

302‐855‐7878 ph. 302‐854‐5079 fax 

Type of Application: (please check applicable) 
Conditional Use 
Zoning Map Amendment  

Site Address of Conditional Use/Zoning Map Amendment 

Type of Conditional Use Requested:  

Tax Map #:  Size of Parcel(s): 

Current Zoning:   Proposed Zoning:   Size of Building:  

Land Use Classification:  

Water Provider:  Sewer Provider:  

Applicant Information 

Applicant Name:  
Applicant Address:  
City:  State:   ZipCode:  
Phone #:  E‐mail: 

Owner Information 

Owner Name: 
Owner Address:  
City:  State:    Zip Code:  
Phone #:  E‐mail: 

Agent/Attorney/Engineer Information  

Agent/Attorney/Engineer Name:  
Agent/Attorney/Engineer Address:  
City:   State:    Zip Code:  
Phone #:  E‐mail: 

KEDavidson
Text Box
235-23.00-54.01 & 02 & 05







 
18072 Davidson Drive 

Milton, DE 19968 
T: 302-684-8030 
F: 302-684-8054 

 
www.pennoni.com 

2020-01-02\235-20.00-54.01, 54.02, and 54.05 
AROBN19001\Legal Description 
KD:ked  

 

 

 

 
 

PARTICULAR DESCRIPTION  
 

LOTS 18, 19, 20 AND PART OF 17, LANDS OF R G HOUSTON,  
LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY OF ALICE P. ROBINSON, TRUSTEE 

 
TAX MAP 235-20.00-54.01, 54.02 AND 54.05 

All that certain piece, parcel and tract lying in the Broadkill Hundred of 

Sussex County, Delaware and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a concrete monument found, said monument situated on the 

southerly right-of-way of Delaware Route One and also being a corner for 

this Parcel and Lands now or formerly of S & J, LLC.; thence by and with this 

Parcel and Lands now or formerly of S & J, LLC., South 47 degrees, 56 

minutes, 58 seconds West, 373.29 feet to a concrete monument found, said 

monument being a corner for this Parcel and Lands now or formerly of S & J, 

LLC. and also lying on a common boundary line with Paynters Mill 

Subdivision; thence by and with this Parcel and Paynters Mill Subdivision, 

North 38 degrees, 25 minutes, 48 seconds West, 350.04 feet to a large stone 

found, said stone being a corner for this Parcel and Lands now or formerly of 

Overbrook Acres, LLC.; thence by and with this Parcel and Lands now or 

formerly of Overbrook Acres, LLC., North 48 degrees, 19 minutes, 12 

seconds East, 384.21 feet to an iron pipe found, said iron pipe being a corner  

 



 January 02, 2020 Page 2 
 
 
AROBN19001                                           235-20.00-54.01, 54.02, AND 54.05 Particular Description  

 

for this Parcel and Lands now or formerly of Overbrook Acres, LLC. and 

situated on the southerly right-of-way of Delaware Route One; thence by and 

with this Parcel and the southerly right-of-way of Delaware Route One, South 

36 degrees, 36 minutes, 47 seconds East, 348.42 feet to a concrete 

monument, said monument being the Point of Beginning for this 

description. 

 

This Parcel Contains 131,876 square feet or 3.03 acres, more or less. 

 
 



  

                                                                                                                                      

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 10, 2019 
 
Ms. Janelle Cornwell, Director 
Sussex County Planning & Zoning 
P.O. Box 417 
Georgetown, DE  19947 
 
Dear Ms. Cornwell:  
 

The Department has completed its review of a Service Level Evaluation Request 
(SLER) for the Alice P. Robinson rezoning application, which we received on November 
7, 2019.  This application is for an approximately 3.00-acre assemblage of parcels (Tax 
Parcels: 235-23.00-54.01, 54.02, and 54.05).  The subject land is located on the southwest 
side of Delaware Route 1, approximately 500 feet southeast of the intersection of Delaware 
Route 1 and Cave Neck Road (New Castle Road 88). The subject land is currently zoned as 
AR-1 (Agricultural Residential) and the applicant is seeking to rezone the land to C-2 
(Medium Commercial) to develop an unspecified number of square feet of retail space, 
professional and / or service businesses.  

 
Per the 2018 Delaware Vehicle Volume Summary, the annual average and summer 

average daily traffic volumes along the segment of Delaware Route 1 where the subject 
land is located, which is from US Route 9 to Delaware Route 16, are 30,522 and 39,281 
vehicles per day, respectively.   

 
Our volume-based criteria for requiring a traffic impact study (TIS), addressed in 

Section 2.2.2.1 of the Development Coordination Manual, are that a development generates 
more than 500 trips per day or 50 trips during a weekly peak hour. While it seems that the 
above criteria could be met, we presently cannot predict the site’s trip generation with 
enough accuracy to make a TIS useful.  Thus, we recommend that this rezoning application 
be considered without a TIS and that the need for a TIS be evaluated when a subdivision or 
land development plan is proposed. 

 
The subject property is adjacent to Delaware Route 1, thereby is subject to the 

Department’s Corridor Capacity Preservation Program.  The main goal of the Program is to 
maintain the capacity of the existing highway by minimizing the number of high-volume, 
direct driveway access points on the arterial highway.  The Program was established in 
accordance with the provisions of Title 17, Section 145 of the Delaware Code.  Delaware 



Ms. Janelle M. Cornwell 
Page 2 of 2 
December 10, 2019 
 
Route 1 is a limited access highway.  According to the Office of State Planning, Strategies 
for State Policies and Spending document, the majority of these properties are located 
within a Level 3 Investment Area.  Given the Investment Level, one low-density rights-
in/rights-out access on Delaware Route 1 for the combined properties would be permitted; 
the combined land use could generate 200 vehicle trips per day or fewer, as determined by 
the Institute of Transportation Engineer’s (ITE) Trip Generation Manual.  Please note that 
the Department is in the process of developing a grade-separated interchange at Cave Neck 
Road and Delaware Route 1, with the intent of routing all future development(s) to the 
interchange via interconnecting service roads and secondary roads. The Corridor Capacity 
Preservation Program policy can be viewed on Department’s website at www.deldot.gov.   

 
If the County approves this application, the applicant should be reminded that 

DelDOT requires compliance with State regulations regarding plan approvals and entrance 
permits, whether or not a TIS is required. 

 
Please contact Mr. Claudy Joinville, at (302) 760-2124, if you have questions 

concerning this correspondence or Mr. Thomas Felice, at (302) 760-2338, if you have 
questions concerning the Corridor Capacity Preservation Program. 

 
 

Sincerely, 

 
T. William Brockenbrough, Jr. 
County Coordinator 
Development Coordination 
 

TWB:cjm 
cc:  Constance C. Holland, Coordinator, Cabinet Committee on State Planning Issues 
 Alice P. Robinson, Applicant  
 J. Marc Coté, Assistant Director, Development Coordination 

Thomas Felice, Corridor Capacity Preservation Program Manager, Development 
Coordination 

 Gemez Norwood, South District Public Works Manager, Maintenance & Operations 
James Argo, South District Project Reviewer, Maintenance & Operations 

 Susanne K. Laws, Sussex County Review Coordinator, Development Coordination 
Derek Sapp, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Brian Yates, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
John Andrescavage, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Kevin Hickman, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Troy Brestel, Project Engineer, Development Coordination 
Claudy Joinville, Project Engineer, Development Coordination 

http://www.deldot.gov/


§ 115-83.11 Permitted uses.

A. A building or land shall only be used for
the following purposes or uses:

(3) Sales and rental of goods, merchandise
and equipment.
(g) Wholesale trade establishments.

(4) Office, clerical, research, personal
service and similar enterprises not primarily
related to goods.
(a) Business service establishments.
(d) Personal service establishments.

(5) Manufacturing, assembling, processing.

(8) Storage and parking.
(a) Self-storage facility.
(b) Warehouse.



  

   
Since the comprehensive plan is a guide for the future use of land, the County’s official zoning 
map must be consistent with the uses and intensities of uses provided for in the Future Land Use 
Plan. Table 4.5-2 is provided below to provide a tool for assisting with determining which zoning 
districts are applicable to each future land use category.  

According to state law, the County must amend its official zoning map to be consistent with the 
Future Land Use Map within 18 months of the date of adoption of the Comprehensive Plan. 
Additionally, future rezonings should also generally be consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  

 
Table 4.5-2 Zoning Districts Applicable to Future Land Use Categories  

FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
CATEGORY 

APPLICABLE ZONING DISTRICT 

Coastal Area 

Agricultural Residential District (AR-1) 
Medium Density Residential District (MR) 

General Residential District (GR) 
High Density Residential District (HR-1 & HR-2) 

Business Community District (B-2) 
Business Research (B-3) 

Medium Commercial District (C-2) 
Heavy Commercial District (C-3) 

Planned Commercial District (C-4) 
Service/Limited Manufacturing District (C-5) 

Institutional District (I-1) 
Marine District (M) 

New Zoning Districts 
Medium Density Residential District (MR) 

   
Each land use proposal the County receives should be reviewed on its own merit to determine if 
the proposal is consistent with the Future Land Use Map and does not have a negative impact on 
the surrounding area or the County in general.  

As described above, the Future Land Use Plan is not the County’s official zoning map. The Future 
Land Use Map and all other aspects of this Comprehensive Plan will be considered primarily 
through ordinances and other programs that fulfill policy objectives. 

4.4.2 The Structure of the Future Land Use Plan 
The Future Land Use Plan divides Sussex County into two types of planning areas: Growth Areas 
and Rural Areas. The Growth Areas and the Rural Areas each include sub-categories as outlined 
below: 

Growth Areas: 

Municipalities 
Town Centers 
Developing Areas 
Coastal Areas 
Existing Development Areas 
Commercial Areas 
Industrial Areas 

4.4.2.1 Growth Areas 
This Plan seeks to encourage the County’s most concentrated forms of new development to 
Growth Areas, including most higher density residential development and most commercial 
development. While Coastal Areas are considered Growth Areas, the County encourages only 
appropriate forms of concentrated new development in these areas, especially when 
environmental features are in play.  



Sussex County

polygonLayer
Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Tax Parcels
Streets
Hundred Boundaries
District Boundaries
County Boundaries

2019 Future Land Use
Low Density
Coastal Area
Commercial
Developing Area
Existing Development Area
Industrial

Municipalities
Town Center

June 5, 2020
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.075 km

1:4,514

 
 

35791 TARPON DR
526

LEWES
DE
LANDS OF R.G.HOUSTON

 
RT. 1
LOT 18  P/O LOT 17

235-23.00-54.02
Owner Name

Mailing Address
Book

City
State
Description

Land Code
Description 3
Description 2

PIN:
ROBINSON ALICE P
TRUSTEE



SR1 and Cave Neck Road Grade Separated Intersection

Alternative 3

New Roundabout

New Roundabout

Cave Neck Road will extend over SR1 at a Grade Separated Interchange. SR1 shifted to the east with access to Cave Neck 
Road provided by loop ramps. Access to and from southbound SR1 will be provided by a frontage road located along the 
current southbound SR1 alignment.  A northbound loop ramp will be located south of Cave Neck Road.

Shift SR1 to the East

Cul-de-sac

Extend Cave Neck Road Over SR1

New Connector Road
New Frontage Road Located Along Existing 
Southbound SR1

C
av

e 
N

ec
k 

R
d.

 

Sh
el

l D
r.

SR1 SB 

SR1 SB SR1 NB 

SR1 NB 

N

Potential Future Local Road 
(To be Built by Others)

Potential Future Local Road 
(To be Built by Others)

W
illo

w
 C

re
ek

 R
d.

 



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 1 of 21.

1 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2019 Aerial Image

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\01 2019 Aerial Image.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 2 of 21.

2 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2017 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\02 2017 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Digital Aerial Solutions, LLC

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 3 of 21.

3 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2012 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\03 2012 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Sanborn Mapping Company

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 4 of 21.

4 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2007 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\04 2007 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

EarthData International of Maryland

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 5 of 21.

5 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2002 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\05 2002 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

State of Delaware Department of Transportation and EarthData

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 6 of 21.

6 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1997 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\06 1997 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

EarthData/PhotoScience Inc.

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 7 of 21.

7 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1992 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\07 1992 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

USDA Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 8 of 21.

8 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1968 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\08 1968 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

USDA Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 9 of 21.

9 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1961 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\09 1961 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

USDA Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 10 of 21.

10 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1954 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/22/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\10 1954 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

USDA Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 11 of 21.

11 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1937 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/22/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\11 1937 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 12 of 21.

12 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

1926 Delaware Orthophoto

Date: 5/21/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\12 1926 Orthophoto.mxd

Subject Parcels
Other Tax Parcels



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 13 of 21.

13 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2015 State Strategies
& Investment Levels

Date: 5/22/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\13 2015 State Strategies.mxd

Investment Level
Level 2
Level 3
Level 4 (unshaded)



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 14 of 21.

14 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

County Zoning Map

Date: 5/22/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\14 County Zoning.mxd

Agricultrual Residential (unshaded)
General Commercial
Medium Residential
Neighborhood Business



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 15 of 21.

15 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

2015 Land Use/Land Cover

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\15 2015 Land Use.mxd

Cropland
Farmsteads & Farm Related Buildings
Mixed Forest
Mixed Residential
Multi Family Dwellings
Other Commercial
Other Urban or Built-up Land
Recreational
Retail Sales/Wholesale/Professional
Single Family Dwellings
Transitional (cleared, filled, graded)



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

GrA

IeARuA

DoA
HmA

HmA

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 16 of 21.

16 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

NRCS Soils Mapping

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\16 NRCS Soils Mapping.mxd

Soil Types:
GrA - Greenwich loam, 0-2% slopes, Group B
IeA - Ingleside loamy sand, 0-2% slopes, Group A



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck

 Road

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 17 of 21.

17 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

State Wetlands Mapping

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\17 State Wetlands Mapping.mxd

DNREC Wetlands



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 18 of 21.

18 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

FEMA Floodplain Mapping

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\18 FEMA Floodplain Mapping.mxd

Zone X

Flood Map #10005C0189K (3/16/15)



Samuel Paynter Boulevard

Lot
20

Lot
19

Lot
18

Coastal Highway

Cave
 Neck R

oad

Surdex Corp

¯

0 200 400 600100
Feet

Figure 19 of 21.

19 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

Groundwater Recharge 
Potential

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\19 Groundwater Recharge Potential.mxd

Fair
Good
Excellent



_̂

¯

0 200400600100
Feet

Figure 20 of 21.

20 Lots 18, 19, & 20, Land of R.G. Houston
AROBN19001

USGS Topographic Map

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\20 USGS Topographic Map.mxd



Heritage 
Antiques 
Market

Harvard 
Business 

Services, Inc.

Red Mill Inn

Willow
Creek
Plaza

Dawn's Country
 Market & Smokin' 

D's BBQ

Atlantic
Self Storage

Overbrook
Center

Hudson
Management

Paynter's Mill
Commercial Area

Sposato
Landscaping

Eagel Crest
Aerodome

Keyboard
America

Shaffer's
Service

Floors
& More

State Farm
Insurance

Wagner & Prigg
Family Medicine

The Surfing
Crab Restaurant

Meineke
Car Care

Light House
Of Lewes

Tyndall's
Casual Furniture

Delaware
Guidance
Services

Beach Babies
Child Care

ÛZ

ÛZ

Red Mill Pond

C/Z 1765
(Approved)

C/Z 1861
(Approved)

Coastal Highway

Cave Neck Road

Best Lane

Eag
les 

Cre
st R

oad

Red Mill Drive Old Mill R
oad

Mill RunJays Way
Overbrook Drive

Surdex Corp

¯

0 500 1,000 1,500250
Feet

Figure 21 of 21.
21 Lots 18, 19, & 20 Land of R.G. Houston

AROBN19001

Area Commercial Uses

Date: 5/27/2020 Document Path: C:\Users\MWalls\Documents\GIS Projects\AROBN19001\21 Area Commercial.mxd

AR-1 (unshaded)

AR-2

CR-1

C-1

C-2

GR

MR

B-1
County
Zoning

MDavidson
Polygon

MDavidson
Text Box
PROPOSED SITE FOR C-2 APPLICATION

MDavidson
Arrow



1 | P a g e  

 

ALICE P. ROBINSON, TRUSTEE 

CHANGE OF ZONE #1916 

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. This is an application to grant a rezoning of a portion of lands in a AR-1 

Agricultural Residential District located on 3.03 acres, more or less in the 

Broadkill Hundred located on the west side of Coastal Highway | DE Route One to 

C-2, Medium Commercial District.  

   

            

2. The applicant is Alice P. Robinson, Trustee with Mrs. Alice Robinson 

representing the family properties. The subject properties have been in the 

Robinson family for over 100-years as well as farmlands across Route One.   

 



2 | P a g e  

 

3. The properties are identified on the tax maps of the Sussex County Department of 

Finance as Tax Map No. 235-23.00 Parcels 54.01, 54.05, and 54.02.  

 

4. The properties are bordered on: 

a. North by vacant B-1 zoned lands. 

b. South by Heritage Antiques Market Zoned C-1 

c. West by Paynter’s Mill – Mixed Use Single Family, Multi Family, 

Commercial Community 

d. East by Coastal Highway, DE Route One a Principal Arterial Roadway 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

5. The purpose of the C-2 Medium Commercial District is to support uses that 

include retail sales and performance of consumer services. It permits a variety of 

retail, professional and service businesses. The district shall be primarily located 

near arterial and collector streets. It accommodates community commercial uses 

that do not have outside storage or sales. 

 

6. In Ordinance 2550, Sussex County Council desired to create a more specific C-2 

Medium Commercial zoning district with smaller, more related uses within the 

District to promote better planning and predictability within Sussex County. 

 

7. The granting of this application for the commercial rezoning will allow the 

Robinson Family to create a medium commercial complex that will provide for 

service and construction trades to have a small office and storage area as well as 

smaller self-storage areas for residential purposes, centrally located, within a 

growth area of the county. 

 



4 | P a g e  

 

8. The proposed rezoning to C-2 for Mrs. Robinson is in the vicinity of other 

commercial zoned property and uses and will not diminish or impair property 

values within the neighborhood; will not create a public nuisance; or result in an 

increase in public expenditures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  

 

9. In the 2019 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan – the area for the proposed 

rezoning for Mrs. Robinson’s commercial property is identified to be in a Coastal 

Area which is a Growth Area. The Sussex Plan seeks to encourage the County’s 

most concentrated forms of new development to Growth Areas, including most 

commercial development. 

 

 

10. The Sussex Plan suggests that each application should be reviewed on its own 

merit and does not have a negative impact on the surrounding area or the county 

in general. Some of the stated goals within the plan for new commercial zoning is 

to: 

 

a.  Promote growth and development in areas where capital facilities and 

infrastructure are already available and adequate to support the growth - [The 

property is located within a Tier One Sussex County Unified Sanitary Sewer 

District as well as within tidewater Utility Water CPCN District].  



6 | P a g e  

 

 

b. Promote commercial development in designated commercial, office, and 

industrial areas in a scale/intensity/distance appropriate to adjacent residential 

neighborhoods – [The property is adjacent to Paynter’s Mill and High Density 

Mixed Use Residential Planned Community on smaller lots and multi-family 

that would benefit with self-storage close to where they live; in addition, 

office and light commercial uses are appropriate within the Coastal Area].  

 

c. Engage in planning that considers the efficient location of public services and 

infrastructure while establishing future public sewer service areas that will 

help preserve open space by promoting orderly growth rather than unplanned 

sprawl – [Both water and sanitary sewer are already located adjacent to the 

property. These properties in this location with a commercial zoning, will 

prohibit any unplanned sprawl that the Comprehensive Plan is discouraging]. 

 

d. Coordinate with DelDOT on road improvements and other transportation 

projects – [A potential concept of the property takes into account access from 

what DelDOT is proposing as a service road that will connect to the over pass 

being considered for the Cave Neck Road – Coastal Highway intersection. All 

Access improvements will be coordinated with all DelDOT sections for safe 

access to and from the properties. Although DelDOT did not require a traffic 

impact study as a part of this rezoning, the applicant understands that the 

property is subject to the Corridor Capacity Preservation Program and thus the 

C-2 Medium Commercial zoning and the uses permitted will minimize the 

any kind of high-volume traffic access to and from the property]. 

 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e  

 

Since the comprehensive plan is a guide for the future use of land, the County’s 

official zoning map must be consistent with the uses and intensities of uses 

provided for in the Future Land Use Plan. Table 4.5-2 is provided below to 

provide a tool for assisting with determining which zoning districts are applicable 

to each future land use category.   

 

 

Coastal Areas are areas that can accommodate development provided special 

environmental concerns are addressed. Retail and office uses are appropriate but 

larger shopping centers and office parks should be confined to selected locations 

with access along arterial roads; Delaware Route One/Coastal Highway being a 

Principal Arterial. Light commercial, office and institutional uses can be 

appropriate to provide for convenient services and to allow people to work close 

to home.  

 

11. The 2015 Strategies for State Policies and Spending Map identifies the area as 

Investment Level 2 and 3. This area is intermingled within a fast-growing area 

within the county and is adjacent to other Level 2 areas. The priorities in these 

Areas are for DelDOT to focus on regional movements between towns and other 

population centers. All infrastructure needs will be funded by the applicant. 



8 | P a g e  

 

Additional public infrastructure that will benefit the community, such as, road 

improvements and access improvements will be coordinated by the applicant.  

 

12. There are no wetlands on the property; the property is located in a Flood Zone X 

Unshaded; there are no historical or natural features on the property ; stormwater 

will be onsite and use infiltration as its primary BMP for handling stormwater 

runoff; the properties are not in any Groundwater Protection Zones; the properties 

are not in any Wellhead Protection Area and there are no existing wooded areas 

on site that will need to be disturbed.  

                          

13. The proposed rezoning meets the general purpose of the Zoning Ordinance being 

located in an appropriate location meeting the purpose of this district and the 

future land use plans, strategies and objectives of the comprehensive plan that 

promotes growth and development through community design, mobility, utilities, 

transportation and economic development in an area where a general mixture of 

commercial and service activity now exists, which is essential and desirable for 

the general convenience, orderly growth, prosperity and welfare of the County. 



§ 115-83.11 Permitted uses.

A. A building or land shall only be used for
the following purposes or uses:

(3) Sales and rental of goods, merchandise
and equipment.
(g) Wholesale trade establishments.

(4) Office, clerical, research, personal
service and similar enterprises not primarily
related to goods.
(a) Business service establishments.
(d) Personal service establishments.

(5) Manufacturing, assembling, processing.

(8) Storage and parking.
(a) Self-storage facility.
(b) Warehouse.



A



B



C



D



E



 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION                                                              Sussex County 
      ROBERT C. WHEATLEY, CHAIRMAN  DELAWARE 
 KIM HOEY STEVENSON, VICE-CHAIRMAN                                                                               sussexcountyde.gov  

         R. KELLER HOPKINS  302-855-7878 T 
          J. BRUCE MEARS                                                                                                            302-854-5079 F 
        HOLLY J. WINGATE                              JAMIE WHITEHOUSE, MRTPI, AICP 
                                                                                                                                                  ACTING DIRECTOR 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING AND COUNTY COUNCIL INFORMATION SHEET 

Planning Commission Public Hearing Date: June 25, 2020 

 

Application: CU 2209 & CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete  

 

Applicant/Owner: Matthew C. Hete  

   45 Kings Creek Circle 

   Rehoboth Beach, DE 19971 

 

Site Location:  34360 Postal Lane.  Southeast side of Postal Lane, approximately 0.22 

mile east of Plantation Road. 

 

Current Zoning: AR-1 (Agricultural Residential District) 

 

Proposed Zoning: MR (Medium Residential District) 

 

Proposed Use:  Multi-Family (14 Units) 

 

Comprehensive Land  

Use Plan Reference:   Coastal Area 

 

Councilmatic 

District:  Mr. Burton 

 

School District: Cape Henlopen School District 

 

Fire District:  Lewes Fire District 

 

Sewer:   Sussex County 

 

Water:    Tidewater 

 

Site Area:   1.25 ac. +/- 

 

Tax Map ID.:   334-6.00-686.00 

 



Sussex County

polygonLayer
Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Tax Parcels
911 Address
Streets
County Boundaries

February 10, 2020
0 0.055 0.110.0275 mi

0 0.085 0.170.0425 km

1:2,257

 
 

45 KING CREEK CIR
4887

REHOBOTH BEACH
DE
SE/S RD 283

 
N/A
2080' S/RT 1

334-6.00-686.00
Owner Name

Mailing Address
Book

City
State
Description

Land Code
Description 3
Description 2

PIN:
HETE MATTHEW C



Sussex County

polygonLayer
Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Tax Parcels
911 Address
Streets

February 10, 2020
0 0.055 0.110.0275 mi

0 0.085 0.170.0425 km

1:2,257

 
 

45 KING CREEK CIR
4887

REHOBOTH BEACH
DE
SE/S RD 283

 
N/A
2080' S/RT 1

334-6.00-686.00
Owner Name

Mailing Address
Book

City
State
Description

Land Code
Description 3
Description 2

PIN:
HETE MATTHEW C



334-12.00-55.01

334-6.00-686.00

334-6.00-682.00

334-6.00-355.00

334-12.00-709.00

33
4-1

2.0
0-7

10
.00

334-6.00-611.00

334-6.00-683.01
334-6.00-683.00

334-6.00-686.01

334-6.00-458.00

334-6.00-357.00

334-6.00-405.00

334-6.00-463.00334-6.00-462.00

334-6.00-460.00

334-6.00-456.00334-6.00-407.00

334-6.00-455.00
334-6.00-459.00

334-6.00-454.00

334-6.00-406.00

334-6.00-457.00

334-6.00-408.00

334-6.00-358.00

334-6.00-461.00

334-6.00-357.01

334-12.00-708.00

334
-6.0

0-3
59.

00

334-6.00-408.01

334-6.00-610.00

334-6.00-395.00

334-6.00-453.00

334-12.00-711.00

334-6.00-464.00

334-6.00-404.00

334-6.00-396.00

33
4-6

.00
-61

2.0
0

DelDOT Planning, Surdex Corp,

Mailing List Exhibit Map
Planning Commission

CU 2209 & CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete
334-6.00-686.00
Matthew C. Hete

45 Kings Creek Circle
Rehoboth Beach, DE 19971

Located on the southeast side of  Postal Lane, approximately 0.22 miles east of

.

0 0.015 0.03 0.045 0.060.0075
Miles



 

JAMIE WHITEHOUSE, AICP MRTPI                           Sussex County                                          
PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR                    DELAWARE 
                  (302) 855-7878 T                                                                                                             sussexcountyde.gov  
           (302) 854-5079 F 
    jamie.whitehouse@sussexcountyde.gov   

 

 

Memorandum 
To: Sussex County Planning Commission Members  
From: Nick Torrance, Planner I    
CC: Vince Robertson, Assistant County Attorney and applicant  
Date: June 24th, 2020 
RE: Staff Analysis for CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete 

 
This memo is to provide background and analysis for the Planning Commission to consider as a 
part of application CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete to be reviewed during the June 25th, 2020 Planning 
Commission Meeting. This analysis should be included in the record of this application and is 
subject to comments and information that may be presented during the public hearing.  
 
The request is for a Change of Zone for parcel 334-6.00-686.00 to facilitate a change from an 
Agricultural Residential (AR-1) Zoning District to the Medium Density Residential (MR) Zoning 
District and is located at 34360 Postal Lane (S.C.R. 283) south of the Sandy Brae Subdivision and 
Postal Lane (S.C.R. 283).  The size of the property is 1.251 acres +/-.   
 
The 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan Update (Comprehensive Plan) provides a 
framework of how land is to be developed.  As part of the Comprehensive Plan a Future Land Use 
Map is included to help determine how land should be zoned to ensure responsible development.  
The Future Land Use map in the plan indicates that the property has the land use designation of 
“Coastal Area.” 
 
The areas to the to the north, south, east and west are also designated “Coastal Areas.” “Coastal 
Areas” are areas that can accommodate development provided special environmental concerns are 
addressed. The “Coastal Area” also supports a range of housing types including single-family 
homes, townhomes, and multi-family units. Retail and office uses are appropriate but larger 
shopping centers and office parks should be confined to selected locations with access along arterial 
roads. Mixed-use development should also be allowed.  
 
The Medium Density Residential (MR) Zoning District is listed as an applicable zoning district for 
the Coastal Area under Table 4.5-2 “Zoning Districts Applicable to Future Land Use Categories” 
of the 2018 Sussex County Comprehensive Plan.  
  
The property is zoned Agricultural Residential (AR-1). The properties to the north of the 
application site on the opposite side of Postal Lane (S.C.R. 283) are zoned Medium Density 
Residential (MR) Zoning District. Properties to the east, west and south of the application site are 
zoned Agricultural Residential (AR-1) Zoning District. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Staff Analysis 
CZ 1907 Matthew Hete 
Planning and Zoning Commission for March 12, 2020 
 

 

Since 2011, there have been two Change of Zone applications within the vicinity of the application 
site: To the southwest is CZ 1835 to facilitate a change of zone from an Agricultural Residential 
(AR-1) Zoning District to the Neighborhood Business (B-1) Zoning District, which was approved 
by County Council on January 9th, 2018 and adopted through Ordinance #2546. To the southeast 
is CZ 1845 to facilitate a change from an Agricultural Residential (AR-1) Zoning District to the 
Neighborhood Business (B-1) Zoning District, which was approved by County Council on March 
13th, 2018 and adopted through ordinance #2556. 
 
Based on the analysis of the land use, surrounding zoning and uses, a change of zone to allow for 
a property zoned Medium Density Residential (MR) Zoning District subject to considerations of 
scale and impact, could be considered as being consistent with the land use, area zoning and 
surrounding uses.  

 















Policy for Extending District Boundaries 

1. Property owner (developer) and/or his representative shall make 
a request to the Utility Planning Division for a Sewer System 
Concept Evaluation. 

2. Property owner (developer) and/or his representative shall meet 
with the applicable planning and zoning agency to determine if 
zoning is appropriate for the development being planned.  

3. With appropriate zoning, property owner (developer) and/or his 
representative shall send a letter (with appropriate application 
fee as listed below) requesting the Sussex County Council to 
consider extending the water and/or sanitary sewer district 
boundaries.  (Sussex County Code)  

Application Fees 

 Less than 2 acres $500.00 

 2.1 -9.99 acres $750.00 

 10 - 150.00 acres $1,500.00 

 Greater than 150.00 acres $2,500.00 

4. The Sussex County Engineering Department shall present, for 
Sussex County Council's consideration, posting of notices for the 
proposed extension of the district boundaries.  

5. The Sussex County Council approves posting notices for the 
proposed extension of the boundaries.  (If approval to post the 
notices is not given, the appropriate fee is refunded.)  

6. Within ninety days of the posting of the notices, the Sussex 
County Council approves/disapproves extending the boundaries. 

7. The Sussex County Council approves/disapproves of the 
extension of the water and/or sanitary sewer pipelines under the 
appropriate Sussex County Ordinance. 
 

















































DONNA PESTO  
34696 Michelle Drive 

Rehoboth Beach, DE  19971 
 

June 23, 2020 
 
Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission 
C/O Email:  Jamie.whitehouse@sussexcountyde.gov 
 
RE:      Applications CU-2209 and CZ-1907, Matthew C. Hete 
 Tax Map 334-6.00-686.00/34360 Postal Lane 
 Hearing Date:  June 25, 2020 
 COMMENTS OPPOSING APPROVAL OF THESE APPLICATIONS 
 
Dear Members of the Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission: 
 
Please consider these comments and enter them into the public record regarding 
the two applications noted above. I am STRONGLY OPPOSED to the Rezoning of 
these parcels and the granting of a Conditional Use Permit to permit the 
construction of 14 townhouse units.   
 
I live two houses away from the parcels that are subject to these applications, in 
Aydelotte Estates.  My objections are based on the land use impacts of the 
proposal and are not simply a case of “not in my backyard.”  I am recently retired 
from Fairfax County (VA), where I served as Deputy Zoning Administrator, which 
position afforded me the opportunity to review these types of applications and 
work with a variety of local government agencies and officials to ensure the 
appropriateness of any given application in the specific location proposed.  This 
application proposes 14 townhouses on a 1.25 acre parcel in an area 
characterized by single family detached dwellings.  This is a classic example of 
spot zoning and it should be rejected as such.  At best, this parcel could be 
considered to be divided into 2 or 3 single family detached dwelling lots.  
Alternatively, the owner could wait to develop the property into something with 
more density in concert with any development of the farm field located at the 
back of the lots.   
 



2 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the March 2019 Comprehensive Plan, development 
in Sussex County should accomplish a number of objectives.  I have noted some of 
these standards below and have added my concerns.   
 

• Ensure that new developments incorporate best practices in subdivision 
design.  The construction of 14 townhouses on 1.25 acres located in between 
two single family dwellings and across the street from nothing but single family 
dwellings is spot zoning and does not constitute any best practices in 
subdivision design.  

• The Coastal Area designation is characterized by ecologically important 
sensitive and important areas.  Paving over nearly the entire 1.25 acres in an 
area that already suffers from drainage problems does not further the goals of 
protection and best practices.   

• The Coastal Area designation allows for a base density of 2 units per acre, 
however higher density of 4-12 units per acre may be permitted when the 
proposal is in keeping with the character of the area and where there is an 
adequate level of service.  This application seeks a density of 11.2 units per 
acre, which is nearly the highest level allowed.  Given that there are no 
townhouses adjacent to or in reasonable proximity to this property to be 
considered an extension of an existing higher density development, this 
request is grossly out of character with the density of all surrounding 
properties.  The applicant cited the Woods Cove and Heritage Village 
developments, which are not immediately proximate to the proposed 
development.  

•  Objective 4.1.2  Discourage incompatible land uses through the enforcement 
of existing land use controls…  The applicant has an opportunity for additional 
development of one or two additional dwellings under the existing zoning for 
the property.  Doing so would maintain the character of the surrounding 
properties and reduce the land use impacts when compared to the proposed 
development.   

• Goal 4.4 Minimize the adverse impacts of future development on existing 
development.  This property can only be accessed by Postal Lane.  Pursuant to 
the analysis conducted by DelDOT, dated November 20, 2019, this application 
will generate fewer than 50 vehicle trips per hour and 500 vehicle trips per day 
and is, therefore, exempt from the requirement for a Traffic Impact Study, but 
one was recommended anyway.  It is not apparent in the application that a TIS 
was conducted, however it is stated by The Kercher Group, Inc. that 102 



3 
 

vehicle trips per day would be generated by this development.   That is only 
7.28 vehicle trips per day, when the more recognized standard for townhouse 
is 10 vehicle trips per day per unit.  Whether the number is 102 or 140, all that 
vehicular traffic must enter Postal Lane at a location that is directly across 
from a dwelling and not adjacent to one of the primary entrances into the 
Sandy Brae development.  According to the Classification of State-Maintained 
Roads map, Postal Lane is designated as a local road.  As such, the land 
development recommendations do not support a rezoning for higher density.  
For anyone who has traveled on Postal Lane, it is apparent that this roadway 
functions at a low Level of Service defined by DelDOT.  The roadway is narrow, 
there are countless individual driveway entrances, there are low lying 
branches from trees adjacent to the road, there is not sidewalk or shoulder, 
and traffic backs up onto Postal Lane both from the Route 1 side and the 
Plantation Road side.  This road is not designed to accommodate a 14 unit 
townhouse development on 1.25 acres in the middle of single family detached 
homes.   

• A number of the letters submitted in support of this application reference the 
construction of affordable housing, yet the application does not propose to 
construct affordable housing.  There is no commitment to establish affordable 
housing with this application, yet, inexplicably, nearly every letter in support of 
this application cites that it will satisfy a need for affordable housing.  It will 
not, but regardless of whether the housing is affordable through the 
establishment of covenants restricting the sale/rental prices or the units are 
market rate, the negative impacts of this proposal remains the same.  This 
property is no more appropriate for affordable housing than it is for market 
rate.   

• Farm access road.  The eastern boundary of this property adjoins a 50’ wide 
piece of land that is part of the corn field lying behind the application property 
and Aydelotte Estates. Presumably, this could serve as an access point onto 
Postal Lane in the event that the farm is eventually developed in a coordinated 
manner and with appropriate acceleration and deceleration lanes on Postal 
Lane.  The townhouse configuration proposed could inhibit the construction of 
future, and very necessary, improvements to Postal Lane in conjunction with 
any development of the farm.  Any desire for such a high level of density on 
the application property should be evaluated in conjunction with development 
of the farm.  Piecemeal development ALWAYS creates negative land use 
impacts 



4 
 

    
Please give careful consideration to the host of negative impacts of this proposal 
and reject this application.  This owner could capitalize on this investment by 
creating a subdivision of 2 or 3 lots that keep with the character of all of the 
surround properties.  The request for 14 houses on this very small lot is an 
overreach and appears to be solely profit based, without regard to compliance 
with the Comprehensive Plan or universally accepted best practices for land 
development.   
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
Donna Pesto 

























































































 

 

Strategic Infrastructure and Transportation  

Asset Management 

Consulting I Systems I Engineering 

THE KERCHER GROUP, INC. 
www.kerchergroup.com   |   37385 Rehoboth Ave., Unit #11, Rehoboth Beach, DE 19971   |    302-854-9062 

 

 

 

 
July 16, 2020 
 
Mr. Jamie Whitehouse, Director 
Sussex County Planning and Zoning Department 
P.O. Box 417 
Georgetown, DE 19947 
 
RE: Lands of Hete4, LLC, C/Z #1907 & C/U #2209 
 
Dear Mr. Whitehouse: 
 
On June 25, 2020, a public hearing was held via a teleconference with the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
in which my client, Lands of Hete4, LLC (Matthew Hete) and I presented a rezoning application along with 
a conditional use for 14-unit townhome development for consideration of approval.  The subject 
development is known as Lands of Hete4, LLC, referenced as C/Z #1907 and C/U #2209. 
 
During this meeting, there was much discussion about the type of multi-family (townhomes) and the number 
of units located on just 1.25 acres. There was concern with the lack of parking associated with the number 
of units as well. The property owner has decided to revise the site plan to address the concerns that the 
Planning Commission discussed during their motion. The revised site plan shows just 4 single family style 
homes, in what is proposed as a condominium development. The access shall be similar to the previous 
layout, but the units depict a 2-car garage and a 2-car parking pad. The proposed density for the revised 
layout is 3.20 units per acre. This is a significant reduction in requested proposed density and falls more in 
line with the current density in the area. The style of homes, single family, is also indicative of the current 
conditions in the immediate vicinity of the property. 
 
The developer of Lands of Hete4, LLC have made every attempt to assure that the design of the project 
conforms to the articles as presented in the County Code and they would like to be sure that the members 
of the Commission are aware of what investigations had been performed on the subject property before the 
public hearing.   
 
Attached to this document are findings associated with Lands of Hete4, LLC.  All documents contained 
within should be on record in the Planning and Zoning Department’s file and we hope that they can be used 
as a guide by the County Council while making their recommendation and decision on the application.  
 
If you should have any questions regarding a statement made within this document please do not hesitate 
to contact our office at your earliest convenience. 
 
Thank you for your attention and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kevin Smith, Project Manager 



 

Page | 2 

 

 
PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT and CONDITIONS FOR 

LANDS OF HETE4, LLC 
CHANGE OF ZONE #1907 / CONDITIONAL USE #2209 

 
 This is an application for a Change of Zone and Conditional Use for single 

family/condominium style development on a parcel of land on the south side of Postal 
Lane (SCR 283), 1.249 acres in size, and identified by the County Assessment Office as 
Sussex County Tax Map 334-6.00, parcels 686.00. 

 
 The property is currently zoned AR1 and is located within the County’s Environmentally 

Sensitive Developing District Overlay Zone.  A rezoning to MR is proposed. 
 

 The property is located across from Sandy Brae, which is zoned MR. There are other 
developments located within the immediate vicinity that MR. (Plantations East, The 
Plantations, Summercrest, Maplewood). There are also commercial developments nearby 
(Pelican Square, Heritage Inn, Bob Evans, Tanger Outlets, Midway Shopping Center). 

 
 According to the Sussex County Comprehensive Plan, this property is identified for 

purposes of future land use as mixed residential.  The Strategies for State Policies and 
Spending identify the area as an investment level 1. 

 
 The project is in character with a long history of development and approved applications 

for development in the immediate area.  The development will provide housing in an area 
where infrastructure and transit services are available and thereby meets the general 
purpose of the County’s Zoning Ordinance by promoting the orderly growth, convenience, 
order, prosperity, and welfare of the County. 

 
 The project will be served with central water by Tidewater Utilities, Inc. and wastewater 

collection will be provided by Sussex County via the Dewey Beach Sanitary Sewer District. 
 
This recommendation of approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. There shall be no more than four (4) dwelling units permitted on the subject parcel. 
 

2. The Final Record Plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Sussex County 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 3 

 

CHAPTER 115-194.3 COMPLIANCE 
 
Lands of Hete4, LLC is proposing to establish a 4-unit, single family/condominium 
development located along Postal Lane (SCR 283), approximately 110’ northeast of Maple 
Drive in Lewes, DE.  With the subject property currently being zoned Agricultural Residential 
(AR-1), our Client is seeking to rezone the property to Medium Density Residential (MR) with 
a Conditional Use in order to provide for the single family/condominium housing at the 
proposed density of 3.20 units per acre.  While also being blanketed by the Environmentally 
Sensitive Development District Overlay Zone (ESDDOZ), the project was designed to be 
compliant with Chapter 115-194.3 in the following manner: 
 
A. Proposed drainage design and the effect on stormwater quality and quantity leaving 

the site, including methods for reducing the amount of phosphorous and nitrogen 
in the stormwater runoff and the control of any other pollutants such as petroleum 
hydrocarbons or metals. 

 
- If the application is acted-upon favorably by the Sussex County Council, 

detailed sediment and stormwater management plans will be prepared for the 
project and submitted to the Sussex Conservation District for detailed review.  
While a technical design has yet to be prepared for the proposed site use, it is 
envisioned that Green Technology Best Management Practices (BMPs) will be 
designed to manage surface runoff generated by the project.  These features 
will promote the use of infiltration for stormwater management while adhering 
to the standards established by the Delaware Department of Natural 
Resources and Environmental Control (DNREC) for water quality treatment 
and the reduction of Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) associated with 
development runoff.  The use of infiltration practices will also allow for the 
reduction of stormwater quantity, when compared to a pre-development 
condition, by not allowing collected runoff to be discharged from the subject 
property via over-land flow and, instead, allowed to permeate the site’s soils. 

 
B. Proposed method of providing potable and, where appropriate, irrigation water and 

the effect on public or private water systems and groundwater, including an 
estimate of average and peak demands. 

  
- The proposed development will be served with potable water by an existing 

central water distribution system, owned and operated by Tidewater Utilities, 
Inc.  A new connection will be established to the distribution system and the 
same source would be used for any potential irrigation of site landscaping, 
without the use of private wells.  Without the use of private wells, it is not 
envisioned that the project will have a detrimental effect on private water 
systems and detailed utility plans for the proposed site use will be submitted to 
Tidewater Utilities for review.  This will be done to ensure that adequate service 
is available for the project and that the proposed utility connection meets their 
standards and specifications.  Based on the proposed site use, it is estimated 
that the average daily demand for potable water will be 1,200 gallons per day, 
with the same being the peak demand. 

 
C. Proposed means of wastewater treatment and disposal with an analysis of the effect 

on the quality of groundwater and surface waters, including alternative locations 
for on-site septic systems. 

 
- The proposed development will be served for wastewater treatment by means 

of a connection to an existing central wastewater collection system, owned and 



 

Page | 4 

 

operated by Sussex County.  As such, private septic systems for the project 
will not be proposed and effects on the quality of groundwater and surface 
water from the treatment of wastewater will be eliminated. 

 
D. Analysis of the increase in traffic and the effect on the surrounding roadway 

system. 
 

- By the creation of the proposed development, it is estimated that 29 vehicular 
trips will be generated via site ingress and egress on a daily basis. With that, 
the applicant will be required to prepare detailed entrance plans for the project 
for technical review by the Delaware Department of Transportation (DelDOT).  
These plans will be reviewed for full compliance with State standards and the 
applicant will be required to improve both the site and Postal Lane as DelDOT 
would see fit to ensure vehicular and pedestrian safety. 

 
E. The presence of any endangered or threatened species listed on federal or state 

registers and proposed habitat protection areas. 
 

- Due to the existing developed nature of the subject property and surrounding 
areas, it is not expected to have any endangered or threatened species within 
the property bounds. 

 
F. The preservation and protection from loss of any tidal or non-tidal wetlands on the 

site. 
 

- There an no tidal or non-tidal wetlands present within the property bounds. 
 

G. Provisions for open space as defined in § 115-4. 
 

- The design for the Lands of Hete4, LLC allows for 0.789 acres (63.1% of the 
parcel area) of open space to be established.  These would be areas set-aside 
for landscaping and stormwater management treatment. 

 
 

H. A description of provisions for public and private infrastructure. 
 

- To serve the proposed development, private infrastructure will be established.  
This would include parking facilities, roadways, wastewater utilities, potable 
water utilities, and stormwater management utilities to support the project.  
Public utilities will be limited to the establishment of a pedestrian walkway along 
the property frontage, as required by DelDOT. 

 
I. Economic, recreational or other benefits. 

 
- The creation of the development will support jobs in the local community, 

employing the need for skilled tradesmen to establish new infrastructure for the 
project, prepare the property, and erect the dwelling units.  

 
J. The presence of any historic or cultural resources that are listed on the National 

Register of Historic Places. 
 

- There are no historic or cultural resources listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places located within the bounds of the subject parcel. 

 



 

Page | 5 

 

K. An affirmation that the proposed application and proposed mitigation measures are 
in conformance with the current Sussex County Comprehensive Plan. 
 

- The proposed application is a permitted use by means of conditional use 
approval, based upon the proposed medium-density residential zoning, by the 
Sussex County Zoning Code.  Being in an area supported for future growth, 
the proposed development will make-use of existing infrastructure to eliminate 
potential impacts to the environment that can be caused through the use of 
private wells and septic systems. 

 
L. Actions to be taken by the applicant to mitigate the detrimental impacts identified 

relevant to Subsection B(2)(a) through (k) above and the manner by which they are 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
- The design for the Lands of Hete4, LLC has been prepared to significantly limit 

or eliminate potential impacts to the environment within the ESDDOZ.  The 
utilization of existing infrastructure utilities for potable water service and 
wastewater collection promotes the health of local environmental systems by 
not establishing private wells or septic systems, which can add nutrient loads 
to the watershed.  The design for the project’s stormwater management 
treatment system will be in-concert with the Green Technology BMP standards 
and specifications of the DNREC and the preservation of open space will be 
maximized by setting-aside 63.1% of the subject parcel for passive open 
space.  The project will also be established on a parcel located within an area 
designated for growth and outside of sensitive areas, such as the City of 
Lewes’ wellhead protection zone.    

 





 

 

Strategic Infrastructure and Transportation  

Asset Management 

Consulting I Systems I Engineering 

THE KERCHER GROUP, INC. 
www.kerchergroup.com   |   37385 Rehoboth Ave., Unit #11, Rehoboth Beach, DE 19971   |    302-854-9062 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Lands of Hete4, LLC 
C/Z #1907 & C/U #2209 

 
Proposed 14-unit 

Townhome Development 
 

Lewes & Rehoboth Hundred 
Sussex County, Delaware 

 
March 5, 2020 

 



CONTENTS 
 
 
Appendix I 
 

 Sussex County Planning & Zoning Application (C/Z & C/U) 
 Service Level Evaluation Request Form 
 DELDOT Service Level Evaluation Response 
 Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department Letter 
 Proposed Finding of Facts and Conditions 
 Chapter 115-194.3 Compliance 

 
Appendix II 
 

 Combination & Boundary Survey (Foresight Services) 
 Deed Book 4784, Page 253 
 Deed Book 4887, Page 134 
 Preliminary Site Plan 

 
Appendix III 
 

 Aerial Image 
 Sussex County Tax Map Overview 
 Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Overview 
 Annex Areas of Concern Map Overview 
 Wastewater Service Areas Map Overview 
 Developed & Protected Lands Map Overview 
 Existing Land Use Map Overview 
 Floodplains & Wetland Map Overview 
 Future Land Use Map Overview 
 Strategies for State Policies Spending Map Overview 
 Strategies for State Policies Spending Map Site 
 Wastewater CPCN Map Overview 
 Water Recharge & Wellhead Map Overview 
 Water Service Area Map Overview 
 Watersheds & Waterways Map Overview 
 Wellhead Protection Map Overview 

 
 
 
 
 
 



File #:    
 
 

Planning & Zoning Commission Application 
Sussex County, Delaware 

Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department 
2 The Circle (P.O. Box 417) Georgetown, DE 19947 

302-855-7878 ph. 302-854-5079 fax 
 

Type of Application: (please check applicable) 
Conditional Use  

 

Zoning Map Amendment ✔ 
 

Site Address of Conditional Use/Zoning Map Amendment 
34360 Postal Lane, Lewes, DE 19958 

Type of Conditional Use Requested: 
Seeking change of zone from agricultural residential (AR-1) to medium density residential (MR)  
 

 
 

Tax Map #: 334-6.00-686.00 Size of Parcel(s): 1.25 Ac. 
 

 

Current Zoning: AR-1 Proposed Zoning: MR Size of Building: 0.50 Ac. +/- 
 

 

 

Land Use Classification: Mixed Residential 

Water Provider: Tidewater Utilities 

 
 

Sewer Provider: Sussex County 
 

 

Applicant Information 
 

Applicant Name: Matthew C. Hete  
Applicant Address: 45 Kings Creek Circle 

 

City: Rehoboth Beach State: DE ZipCode: 19971  
Phone #:(302) 344-8988 E-mail: mchete@msn.com  

 

Owner Information 
 

Owner Name: Same as Applicant      
Owner Address:       
City:  State:  Zip Code:    
Phone #:  E-mail:     

 
Agent/Attorney/Engineer Information 

 

Agent/Attorney/Engineer Name: The Kercher Group, Inc.  

Agent/Attorney/Engineer Address:  37385 Rehoboth Ave. Ext., Unit #11  
City: Rehoboth Beach State: DE  Zip Code: 19971  
Phone #:(302) 781-4346 E-mail: kts@kerchergroup.com  

 
 



Check List for Sussex County Planning & Zoning Applications 
The following shall be submitted with the application 

 

✔ Completed Application 

✔ Provide eight (8) copies of the Site Plan or Survey of the property 
o Survey shall show the location of existing or proposed building(s), building setbacks, 

parking area, proposed entrance location, etc. 
o Provide a PDF of Plans (may be e-mailed to a staff member) 
o Deed or Legal description 

✔ Provide Fee $500.00 
 

    Optional - Additional information for the Commission/Council to consider (ex. 
architectural elevations, photos, exhibit books, etc.) If provided submit 8 copies and they 
shall be submitted a minimum of ten (10) days prior to the Planning Commission meeting. 

 

✔ Please be aware that Public Notice will be sent to property owners within 200 feet of the 
subject site and County staff will come out to the subject site, take photos and place a sign 
on the site stating the date and time of the Public Hearings for the application. 

✔ DelDOT Service Level Evaluation Request Response 
 

    PLUS Response Letter (if required) 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the forms, exhibits, and statements contained in any papers or 
plans submitted as a part of this application are true and correct. 

 
I also certify that I or an agent on by behalf shall attend all public hearing before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the Sussex County Council and any other hearing necessary for this application 
and that I will answer any questions to the best of my ability to respond to the present and future 
needs, the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the inhabitants 
of Sussex County, Delaware. 

 

Signature of Applicant/Agent/Attorney  
 

Date: 

 
 
10/23/19 

 

 

Signature of Owner  
 

Date: 

 
 
10/23/19 

 

 
For office use only: 
Date Submitted:    
Staff accepting application:    

 
Fee: $500.00   Check #:    
Application & Case #:   

Location of property:    
 

Subdivision:    
Date of PC Hearing:    
Date of CC Hearing:    

Recommendation of PC Commission:    
Decision of CC:    

 
 

Sussex County P & Z Commission application 
P a g e | 2 last updated 3-17-16 



File #:    
 
 

Planning & Zoning Commission Application 
Sussex County, Delaware 

Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department 
2 The Circle (P.O. Box 417) Georgetown, DE 19947 

302-855-7878 ph. 302-854-5079 fax 
 

Type of Application: (please check applicable) 
Conditional Use ✔ 

 

Zoning Map Amendment  
 

Site Address of Conditional Use/Zoning Map Amendment 
34360 Postal Lane, Lewes, DE 19958 

Type of Conditional Use Requested: 
Seeking conditional use to permit multi-family dwellings  
 

 
 

Tax Map #: 334-6.00-686.00 Size of Parcel(s): 1.25 Ac. 
 

 

Current Zoning: AR-1 Proposed Zoning: MR Size of Building: 0.50 Ac. +/- 
 

 

 

Land Use Classification: Mixed Residential 

Water Provider: Tidewater Utilities 

 
 

Sewer Provider: Sussex County 
 

 

Applicant Information 
 

Applicant Name: Matthew C. Hete  
Applicant Address: 45 Kings Creek Circle 

 

City: Rehoboth Beach State: DE ZipCode: 19971  
Phone #:(302) 344-8988 E-mail: mchete@msn.com  

 

Owner Information 
 

Owner Name: Same as Applicant      
Owner Address:       
City:  State:  Zip Code:    
Phone #:  E-mail:     

 
Agent/Attorney/Engineer Information 

 

Agent/Attorney/Engineer Name: The Kercher Group, Inc.  

Agent/Attorney/Engineer Address:  37385 Rehoboth Ave. Ext., Unit #11  
City: Rehoboth Beach State: DE  Zip Code: 19971  
Phone #:(302) 781-4346 E-mail: kts@kerchergroup.com  

 
 



Check List for Sussex County Planning & Zoning Applications 
The following shall be submitted with the application 

 

✔ Completed Application 

✔ Provide eight (8) copies of the Site Plan or Survey of the property 
o Survey shall show the location of existing or proposed building(s), building setbacks, 

parking area, proposed entrance location, etc. 
o Provide a PDF of Plans (may be e-mailed to a staff member) 
o Deed or Legal description 

✔ Provide Fee $500.00 
 

    Optional - Additional information for the Commission/Council to consider (ex. 
architectural elevations, photos, exhibit books, etc.) If provided submit 8 copies and they 
shall be submitted a minimum of ten (10) days prior to the Planning Commission meeting. 

 

✔ Please be aware that Public Notice will be sent to property owners within 200 feet of the 
subject site and County staff will come out to the subject site, take photos and place a sign 
on the site stating the date and time of the Public Hearings for the application. 

✔ DelDOT Service Level Evaluation Request Response 
 

    PLUS Response Letter (if required) 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the forms, exhibits, and statements contained in any papers or 
plans submitted as a part of this application are true and correct. 

 
I also certify that I or an agent on by behalf shall attend all public hearing before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the Sussex County Council and any other hearing necessary for this application 
and that I will answer any questions to the best of my ability to respond to the present and future 
needs, the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the inhabitants 
of Sussex County, Delaware. 

 

Signature of Applicant/Agent/Attorney  
 

Date: 

 
 
10/23/19 

 

 

Signature of Owner  
 

Date: 

 
 
10/23/19 

 

 
For office use only: 
Date Submitted:    
Staff accepting application:    

 
Fee: $500.00   Check #:    
Application & Case #:   

Location of property:    
 

Subdivision:    
Date of PC Hearing:    
Date of CC Hearing:    

Recommendation of PC Commission:    
Decision of CC:    

 
 

Sussex County P & Z Commission application 
P a g e | 2 last updated 3-17-16 



Last updated 7-27-18 

Service Level Evaluation Request Form 

This form shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Office and a response shall be received 
back from DelDOT prior to the applicant being able to submit an application to the Planning and 
Zoning Office.   

Date: 

Site Information:  

Site Address/Location:  

Tax Parcel Number:  
Current Zoning:  
Proposed Zoning:  
Land Use Classification:  

Proposed Use(s):  

Square footage of any proposed buildings or number of units:  

Applicant Information:  

Applicant’s Name:  

Applicant’s Address:  
City: State: Zip Code: 

Applicant’s Phone Number:  
Applicant’s e-mail address:  

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES
2 THE CIRCLE I PO BOX 417

 GEORGETOWN, DELAWARE 19947

10/24/19

34360 Postal Lane, Lewes, DE 19958

334-6.00-686.00
AR-1

MR

Mixed Residential

14 multi-family units (townhomes)

21,780 s.f.

Matthew C. Hete

45 Kings Creek Circle

Rehoboth Beach DE 19971

(302) 344-8988

mchete@msn.com



  

                                                                                                                                      

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 20, 2019 
 
Ms. Janelle Cornwell, Director 
Sussex County Planning & Zoning 
P.O. Box 417 
Georgetown, DE  19947 
 
Dear Ms. Cornwell:  
 

The Department has completed its review of a Service Level Evaluation Request 
for the Matthew C. Hete rezoning application, which we received on October 24, 2019.  
This application is for an approximately 1.25-acre parcel (Tax Parcel: 334-6.00-686.00). 
The subject land is located on the southeast side of Postal Lane (Sussex Road 283), 
approximately 1,200 feet northeast of the intersection of Plantation Road (Sussex Road 
275) and Postal Lane / Cedar Grove Road (Sussex Road 283). The subject land is currently 
zoned as AR-1 (Agricultural Residential) and the applicant is seeking to rezone the land to 
MR (Medium-Density Residential) to develop 14 units of multi-family housing 
(townhouses).       

 
Per the 2018 Delaware Vehicle Volume Summary, the annual average and summer 

average daily traffic volumes along the segment of Postal Lane where the subject land is 
located, which is from Plantation Road to Delaware Route 1, are 9,812 and 12,628 vehicles 
per day, respectively.   

 
Based on our review, we estimate that the above land use will generate fewer than 

50 vehicle trips in any hour and fewer than 500 vehicle trips per day.  These numbers of 
trips are DelDOT’s minimum warrants for determining that a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) 
should be required for a particular development.  Because the proposed land use would not 
meet these warrants, we consider the development’s traffic impact to be negligible in the 
context of our agreement with the County regarding land development coordination and we 
do not recommend that the applicant be required to perform a TIS for the subject 
application. DelDOT’s description of this application as negligible with regard to 
warranting a TIS does not mean that it is negligible in other respects. We recommend that 
the applicant not be required to perform a TIS for the subject application. 

 
If the County approves this application, the applicant should be reminded that 

DelDOT requires compliance with State regulations regarding plan approvals and entrance 
permits, whether or not a TIS is required. 



Ms. Janelle M. Cornwell 
Page 2 of 2 
November 20, 2019 
 

Please contact Mr. Claudy Joinville, at (302) 760-2124, if you have questions 
concerning this correspondence.  
 

Sincerely, 

 
T. William Brockenbrough, Jr. 
County Coordinator 
Development Coordination 
 

TWB:cjm 
cc:  Constance C. Holland, Coordinator, Cabinet Committee on State Planning Issues 
 Matthew C. Hete, Applicant 
 J. Marc Coté, Assistant Director, Development Coordination 
 Gemez Norwood, South District Public Works Manager, Maintenance & Operations 
 Susanne Laws, Sussex County Subdivision Coordinator, Development Coordination 

Derek Sapp, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Kevin Hickman, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Brian Yates, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
John Andrescavage, Subdivision Manager, Development Coordination 
Troy Brestel, Project Engineer, Development Coordination 
Claudy Joinville, Project Engineer, Development Coordination 



 

 

Strategic Infrastructure and Transportation  

Asset Management 

Consulting I Systems I Engineering 

THE KERCHER GROUP, INC. 
www.kerchergroup.com   |   37385 Rehoboth Ave., Unit #11, Rehoboth Beach, DE 19971   |    302-854-9062 

 

 
 
 

 
March 5, 2020 
 
Mr. Jamie Whitehouse, Director 
Sussex County Planning and Zoning Department 
P.O. Box 417 
Georgetown, DE 19947 
 
RE: Lands of Hete4, LLC, C/Z #1907 & C/U #2209 
 
Dear Mr. Whitehouse: 
 
On March 26, 2020 and May 12, 2020, public hearings are to be held in the County Council Chambers, 
within the Administrative Building of Sussex County.  During those hearings, the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and County Council will allow our clients, Lands of Hete4, LLC to present a rezoning 
application along with a conditional use for 14-unit townhome development for consideration of approval.  
The subject development would be known as Lands of Hete4, LLC, referenced as C/Z #1907 and C/U 
#2209. 
 
Lands of Hete4, LLC is a proposed 14-unit townhome development, located on Postal Lane (SCR 283), 
approximately 110’ northeast of Maple Drive in Lewes, DE.  The project shall meet the minimum standards 
set forth by the County and State.  With the subject property currently being zone Agricultural Residential 
(AR-1), our client is seeking to rezone the property to Medium Residential (MR) with a Conditional Use in 
order to provide for the multi-family housing at the proposed density of 11.21 units per acre. In a pre-
developed condition, the subject property contains a single residential dwelling, which is currently occupied. 
 
The developers of Lands of Hete4, LLC have made every attempt to assure that the design of the project 
conforms to the articles as presented in the County Code and they would like to be sure that the members 
of the Commission are aware of what investigations had been performed on the subject property before the 
public hearing.   
 
Attached to this document are findings associated with Lands of Hete4, LLC.  All documents contained 
within should be on record in the Planning and Zoning Department’s file and we hope that they can be used 
as a guide by both the Planning Commission and the County Council while making their recommendation 
and decision on the application.  
 
If you should have any questions regarding a statement made within this document please do not hesitate 
to contact our office at your earliest convenience. 
 
Thank you for your attention and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kevin Smith, Project Manager 



 

Page | 2 
 

 
PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT and CONDITIONS FOR 

LANDS OF HETE4, LLC 
CHANGE OF ZONE #1907 / CONDITIONAL USE #2209 

 
• This is an application for a Change of Zone and Conditional Use for multi-family dwelling 

units on a parcel of land on the south side of Postal Lane (SCR 283), 1.249 acres in size, 
and identified by the County Assessment Office as Sussex County Tax Map 334-6.00, 
parcels 686.00. 

 
• The property is currently zoned AR1 and is located within the County’s Environmentally 

Sensitive Developing District Overlay Zone.  A rezoning to MR is proposed. 
 

• The property is located near existing multi-family residential developments (Woods Cove, 
Heritage Village/American Classic Golf Club). There are other developments located 
within the immediate vicinity that MR. (Sandy Brae, Plantations East, The Plantations, 
Summercrest, Maplewood). There are also commercial developments nearby (Pelican 
Square, Heritage Inn, Bob Evans, Tanger Outlets, Midway Shopping Center). 

 
• According to the Sussex County Comprehensive Plan, this property is identified for 

purposes of future land use as mixed residential.  The Strategies for State Policies and 
Spending identify the area as an investment level 1. 

 
• The project is in character with a long history of development and approved applications 

for development in the immediate area.  The development will provide housing in an area 
where infrastructure and transit services are available and thereby meets the general 
purpose of the County’s Zoning Ordinance by promoting the orderly growth, convenience, 
order, prosperity, and welfare of the County. 

 
• The project will be served with central water by Tidewater Utilities, Inc. and wastewater 

collection will be provided by Sussex County via the Dewey Beach Sanitary Sewer District. 
 
This recommendation of approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. There shall be no more than fourteen (14) dwelling units permitted on the subject 
parcels. 

 
2. The Final Record Plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Sussex County 

Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 3 
 

CHAPTER 115-194.3 COMPLIANCE 
 
Lands of Hete4, LLC is proposing to establish a 14-unit, townhome development located along 
Postal Lane (SCR 283), approximately 110’ northeast of Maple Drive in Lewes, DE.  With the 
subject property currently being zoned Agricultural Residential (AR-1), our Client is seeking 
to rezone the property to Medium Density Residential (MR) with a Conditional Use in order to 
provide for the multi-family housing at the proposed density of 11.21 units per acre.  While 
also being blanketed by the Environmentally Sensitive Development District Overlay Zone 
(ESDDOZ), the project was designed to be compliant with Chapter 115-194.3 in the following 
manner: 
 
A. Proposed drainage design and the effect on stormwater quality and quantity leaving 

the site, including methods for reducing the amount of phosphorous and nitrogen 
in the stormwater runoff and the control of any other pollutants such as petroleum 
hydrocarbons or metals. 

 
- If the application is acted-upon favorably by the Sussex County Council, 

detailed sediment and stormwater management plans will be prepared for the 
project and submitted to the Sussex Conservation District for detailed review.  
While a technical design has yet to be prepared for the proposed site use, it is 
envisioned that Green Technology Best Management Practices (BMPs) will be 
designed to manage surface runoff generated by the project.  These features 
will promote the use of infiltration for stormwater management while adhering 
to the standards established by the Delaware Department of Natural 
Resources and Environmental Control (DNREC) for water quality treatment 
and the reduction of Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) associated with 
development runoff.  The use of infiltration practices will also allow for the 
reduction of stormwater quantity, when compared to a pre-development 
condition, by not allowing collected runoff to be discharged from the subject 
property via over-land flow and, instead, allowed to permeate the site’s soils. 

 
B. Proposed method of providing potable and, where appropriate, irrigation water and 

the effect on public or private water systems and groundwater, including an 
estimate of average and peak demands. 

  
- The proposed townhomes will be served with potable water by an existing 

central water distribution system, owned and operated by Tidewater Utilities, 
Inc.  A new connection will be established to the distribution system and the 
same source would be used for any potential irrigation of site landscaping, 
without the use of private wells.  Without the use of private wells, it is not 
envisioned that the project will have a detrimental effect on private water 
systems and detailed utility plans for the proposed site use will be submitted to 
Tidewater Utilities for review.  This will be done to ensure that adequate service 
is available for the project and that the proposed utility connection meets their 
standards and specifications.  Based on the proposed site use, it is estimated 
that the average daily demand for potable water will be 4,200 gallons per day, 
with the same being the peak demand. 

 
C. Proposed means of wastewater treatment and disposal with an analysis of the effect 

on the quality of groundwater and surface waters, including alternative locations 
for on-site septic systems. 

 
- The proposed townhomes will be served for wastewater treatment by means 

of a connection to an existing central wastewater collection system, owned and 



 

Page | 4 
 

operated by Sussex County.  As such, private septic systems for the project 
will not be proposed and effects on the quality of groundwater and surface 
water from the treatment of wastewater will be eliminated. 

 
D. Analysis of the increase in traffic and the effect on the surrounding roadway 

system. 
 

- By the creation of the proposed townhomes, it is estimated that 102 vehicular 
trips will be generated via site ingress and egress on a daily basis. With that, 
the applicant will be required to prepare detailed entrance plans for the project 
for technical review by the Delaware Department of Transportation (DelDOT).  
These plans will be reviewed for full compliance with State standards and the 
applicant will be required to improve both the site and Shady Road as DelDOT 
would see fit to ensure vehicular and pedestrian safety. 

 
E. The presence of any endangered or threatened species listed on federal or state 

registers and proposed habitat protection areas. 
 

- Due to the existing developed nature of the subject property and surrounding 
areas, it is not expected to have any endangered or threatened species within 
the property bounds. 

 
F. The preservation and protection from loss of any tidal or non-tidal wetlands on the 

site. 
 

- There an no tidal or non-tidal wetlands present within the property bounds. 
 

G. Provisions for open space as defined in § 115-4. 
 

- The design for the Lands of Hete4, LLC allows for 0.672 acres (53.8% of the 
parcel area) of open space to be established.  These would be areas set-aside 
for landscaping and stormwater management treatment. 

 
 

H. A description of provisions for public and private infrastructure. 
 

- To serve the proposed townhomes, private infrastructure will be established.  
This would include parking facilities, roadways, wastewater utilities, potable 
water utilities, and stormwater management utilities to support the project.  
Public utilities will be limited to the establishment of a pedestrian walkway along 
the property frontage, as required by DelDOT. 

 
I. Economic, recreational or other benefits. 

 
- The creation of the townhomes will support jobs in the local community, 

employing the need for skilled tradesmen to establish new infrastructure for the 
project, prepare the property, and erect the dwelling units.  

 
J. The presence of any historic or cultural resources that are listed on the National 

Register of Historic Places. 
 

- There are no historic or cultural resources listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places located within the bounds of the subject parcel. 

 

http://www.ecode360.com/8883721#8883721


 

Page | 5 
 

K. An affirmation that the proposed application and proposed mitigation measures are 
in conformance with the current Sussex County Comprehensive Plan. 
 

- The proposed application is a permitted use by means of conditional use 
approval, based upon the proposed medium-density residential zoning, by the 
Sussex County Zoning Code.  Being in an area supported for future growth, 
the proposed townhomes will make-use of existing infrastructure to eliminate 
potential impacts to the environment that can be caused through the use of 
private wells and septic systems. 

 
L. Actions to be taken by the applicant to mitigate the detrimental impacts identified 

relevant to Subsection B(2)(a) through (k) above and the manner by which they are 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
- The design for the Lands of Hete4, LLC has been prepared to significantly limit 

or eliminate potential impacts to the environment within the ESDDOZ.  The 
utilization of existing infrastructure utilities for potable water service and 
wastewater collection promotes the health of local environmental systems by 
not establishing private wells or septic systems, which can add nutrient loads 
to the watershed.  The design for the project’s stormwater management 
treatment system will be in-concert with the Green Technology BMP standards 
and specifications of the DNREC and the preservation of open space will be 
maximized by setting-aside 53.8% of the subject parcel for passive open 
space.  The project will also be established on a parcel located within an area 
designated for growth and outside of sensitive areas, such as the City of 
Lewes’ wellhead protection zone.    

 

http://www.ecode360.com/8885217#8885217
http://www.ecode360.com/8885227#8885227


















Lands of Hete4, LLC 

1000 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2020 Google

© 2020 Google

© 2020 Google



Sussex County

polygonLayer
Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Tax Parcels
911 Address
Streets
Hundred Boundaries
District Boundaries

Map Grid
Subzone
Zone
Map Index

Tax Ditch Segments
Tax Ditch Channel
Pond Feature
Special Access ROW

Extent of Right-of-Way
Approx. Watershed Boundary

Sussex_Co
Depression Index
Depression Intermediate
Normal Index
Normal Intermediate

Major Routes
Interstate
State
United States
Rail Lines
Public Protected Lands
Geographic Names
Communities
Municipal Boundaries

March 5, 2020
0 0.025 0.050.0125 mi

0 0.04 0.080.02 km

1:1,128

 
 

45 KING CREEK CIR
4887

REHOBOTH BEACH
DE
SE/S RD 283

 
 
2080' S/RT 1

334-6.00-686.00
Owner Name

Mailing Address
Book

City
State
Description

Land Code
Description 3
Description 2

PIN:
HETE MATTHEW C





*SITE



*SITE



*SITE



*SITE



*SITE



*SITE



2015 State Strategies
for Policies and Spending

State of Delaware

0 1.5 3 4.5 60.75
Miles

This map was created by the Office of State Planning 
Coordination.  A variety of data inputs were used and 

include: State, Federal, County and Local government data.

µ Legend
Municipalities

Strategy Level
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Level 4
Out of Play

*SITE



3/5/2020 x_____x_UU4pHw1jIUdPFAHacuF-Q..x_____x_ags_b56c241c-5efc-11ea-a430-22000a90bca1.png (1056×816)

https://utility.arcgisonline.com/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisoutput/Utilities/PrintingTools_GPServer/x_____x_UU4pHw1jIUdPFAHacuF-Q..x_____x_ags_b56c241c-5efc-11ea-a430-22000a90bca1.png 1/2



*SITE



*SITE



*SITE



*SITE



*SITE


	072820 AGENDA
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Info Sheet
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Street Map
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Zoning Map
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Aerial Map
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Staff Analysis
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Application
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Service Letter Evaluation Request
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Utility Comments
	CZ 1916 Alice P. Robinson, Trustee Survey
	AROBN19001 HEARING EXHIBIT BOOK
	CONCEPT PLAN
	Applicant Presentation Alice P. robinson CZ 1916 Receievd 06.23.2020
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5


	CZ 1907 & CU 2209 Matthew C. Hete
	CU 2209_CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Info Sheet
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Street Map
	CZ 1907Matthew C. Hete Zoning Map
	CZ 1907 & CU 2209 Matthew C. Hete Aerial Map
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Staff Analysis (Updated 6_24)
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Application
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete SLER
	CU 2209 & CZ 1907 Matthew C Hete Utility Comments
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Support Letters
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Letter of Support 7-9
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Opposition Letters
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Objection Letter Received 06.23.2020
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Addition Objection Letters Received 06.24.2020
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Additional Letters of Objection 7-8
	LETTER OF OPPOSITION FOR CU 2209
	oppostition letter CZ 1907
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete Council Letter 2020-07-16
	CZ 1907 Matthew C. Hete New Preliminary Plan 7-17-20
	Lands of Hete4-Exhibit Booklet_2020-03-06
	01A-Title
	02A-SC PZ Application-Rezoning
	02B-SC PZ Application-CU
	03-SLE-Matthew Hete-34360 Postal Lane
	04-2019-11-20_Hete_SFR-Response
	Sincerely,
	T. William Brockenbrough, Jr.
	County Coordinator
	Development Coordination


	05-Letter
	06-PB286-PG24
	07-DB4784-PG253
	08-DB4887-PG134
	09-19-1001ES-S1-PRELIM
	10-Hete-Aerial
	11-Hete-Tax Map
	12-Hete-FM10005C0332K
	13-AnnexationAreasofConcern
	14-CountyWastewaterServiceAreas
	15-DevelopedProtectedLands
	16-ExistingLandUse
	17-FloodplainsWetlands
	18-FutureLandUsePlan
	19-StrategiesForStatePoliciesSpending
	20-StrategiesForStatePoliciesSpending-zoom
	21-WastewaterCPCN
	22-WaterMapsussex
	23-WaterServiceAreas
	24-WatershedsWaterways
	25-WellheadProtectionAreas



	CU: Off
	ZMA: Yes
	Site Address: SB COASTAL HWY 528' +/- SOUTH FROM CENTER LINE OF RT 88 CAVE NECK RD MILTON DE 19968
	Type of CU: 
	Tax Parcel: 
	Size: 3.0 +/- PARCELS
	Current Zoning: AR-1
	Proposed Zoning: C-2
	Size of Building: 
	Land Use: COASTAL AREA
	Water Provider: TIDEWATER
	Sewer Provider: SUSSEX COUNTY
	Applicant Name: ALICE P ROBINSON, TRUSTEE
	Applicant Address: 35791 TARPON DRIVE
	Applicant City: LEWES 
	Applicant State: DE
	Applicant Zip Code: 19958
	Applicant Phone Number: 302 227 7216
	Applicant E-mail: VENTOSA@MSN.COM
	Owner Name: ALICE P ROBINSON, TRUSTEE
	Owner Address: 35791 TARPON DRIVE
	Owner City: LEWES
	Owner State: DE
	Owner Zip Code: 19958
	Owner Phone Number: 302 227 7216
	Owner e-mail: VENTOSA@MSN.COM
	Agent Name: MARK H DAVIDSON | PENNONI
	Agent Address: 18072 DAVIDSON DRIVE 
	Agent City: MILTON
	Agent State: DE
	Agent Zip Code: 19968
	Agent Phone Number: 302 684 6207
	Agent E-mail: MDAVIDSON@PENNONI.COM


